
BOROUGH OF FAIR LAWN 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Regular Meeting 
of July 19, 2007 

 
 
Following are the minutes of the Fair Lawn Zoning Board of Adjustment's regular 
meeting held on Thursday, July 19, 2007. 
 
Chairman Scott Levy called the regular meeting to order at 7:15 p.m. and declared that 
the meeting was being held in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Law. 
 
Roll Call:  Present were: Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel,  

Mr. Salerno, Mr. Blecher, Mr. Diner and Mr. Levy. 
 
Mr. Meer arrived at 7:20 p.m. and Mr. Charipper arrived at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Absent Mr. Nakashian and Mr. Sacchinelli.  (Mr. Nakashian was ill). 

 
Also in attendance were William Soukas, Board Attorney; Karen Kocsis, Court Reporter; 
Ann Peck, Assistant Zoning Officer and Carol LoPiccolo, Zoning Board Clerk. 
 

Mr. Levy announced the following adjournments: 

 
Commercial Old Business: 
 

1. Application #2006-018, Sebastian E. Lentini (McDonald’s) 
37-01 Broadway, Block 2320, Lots 10-12, Zone B-2/R-1-3 
Amendment to approved use/site plan approval requires site plan approval as per 
RGO Section 125-6.  Application carried to a special meeting on August 30, 
2007.  
 

2. Application #2006-038, 37-10 Broadway, LLC (Zap Lube) 
37-02/37-10 Broadway, Block 2201, Lot 2, Zone B-2 
The placement of a billboard sign on the property located at 37-01 through 37-10 
Broadway, Block 2201, Lot 3.  The billboard requires a use variance as the 
service is provided at another location RGO Section 125-57(d)(1).  Application 
carried to a special meeting on August 7, 2007.   

 
 3. Application #2006-100, Omnipoint Communication, Inc. 

33-02 Morlot Avenue, Block 2410, Lot 49-56, Zone R-1-2 
The proposed antenna flagpole requires a use variance as per Section 125-
57.D.(d)[1] use variance. Application carried to a special meeting on 
September 6, 2007.  



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
       4.  Application #2007-022, Cumberland Farms, Inc. 

20-11 Fairlawn Avenue, Block 4701, Lot 6, Zone B-1 
The proposed removal of existing Gulf Service Station and reconstruction of a 
gasoline filling station requires a Conditional Use Variance Section 125-24.B.  A 
new Cumberland Farms convenience store creating two principal uses requires a 
Use Variance as per Section 125-57.D.(d), Major Site Plan Approval as per 
Section 125-65.A.  Variances and or waivers for Buffer Section 125-41.B.(12), 
parking and loading areas Section 125-48.D., Food Handler’s License/Minor Site 
Plan Application Section 125-65.B.(3), Signs Section 125-48.B, Fences Section 
125-38.A.  Application carried to a regular meeting on September 17, 2007.   
 
No further notice will be given and all applicants consented to the time for the 
Board to act on their respective application. 

 
Residential Old Business: 

 
1. Application #2007-050, Jin Chiu Lu 

28-15 Rutgers Terrace, Block 3621, Lot 27, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 6,249 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Lot frontage of 62.5’ where 
75’ is required.  The removal of existing house and replace with a new one family 
dwelling would have building coverage of 29.3% where 25% is permitted.  Would 
have impervious coverage of 36.9% where 35% is permitted.  Would have side 
yard setback of 8.04’ where 10’ is required.  Would have front yard setback of 
22.93’ where 30’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and 
building requirements. 
 
Mr. Chris Rodriguez [Architect with Carl Mecky Architects] for the applicant 
came forward with Jin Chiu Lu and were both sworn in.  Fees totaling $88.00 
have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Ms. Lu stated that she has lived in the house for 6 years and would like to make 
the home more comfortable for her family. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez stated that the home is a cape cod and Mrs. Lu would like to 
update the house.  The first floor would have a sitting room, family room, dining 
room and kitchen with 4 bedrooms upstairs with 2 bathrooms.  Mr. Rodriguez 
stated that the angle of the property causes the property line to taper.  The 
coverages are deficient due to the size of the property.  There are site hardships 
and if the property were the correct size of 75’ x 100’ there would be no variances 
needed. 
 
Mr. Karas asked if there is an attached garage.  Mr. Rodriguez stated yes and the 
existing house has many preexisting variances.  With the proposed plan, the site 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 3 
 
 
 

would improve.  Mr. Karas asked if the home would be demolished.  Mr. 
Rodriguez stated yes.  Mr. Karas stated that the proposal has a detached garage 
and that needs a driveway which would add to the impervious coverage, even 
though the Ordinance would not count it.  Mr. Karas asked why couldn’t an 
addition be done without demolishing the home.  Mr. Rodriguez stated if the 
garage were pulled forward and there would be a 4.9’ offset to the property line 
instead of 13’. 
 
Mr. Levy asked how many cars are parked on the property now.  Ms. Lu stated 2 
cars. 
 
Mr. Newman asked why the driveway wouldn’t be counted if the garage is 
detached.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that is how the Ordinance counts it. 
 
Mr. Levy asked how high is the roof to the ridge.  Mr. Rodriguez responded 35’. 
 
Mr. Newman asked the side yard setbacks.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 4.3’ is existing 
and it would be 8.4’. 
 
Mr. Levy asked if the house could have been designed to better fit within the 
Ordinance – if the house could have been moved further back.  Mr. Rodriguez 
stated that it could be moved back, but it would be difficult to back a car out.   
 
Mr. Levy asked why the height to the ridge is so high.  Mr. Rodriguez responded 
for the aesthetics.  Mr. Levy asked if the remainder of the neighborhood has peaks 
that high.  Mr. Rodriguez stated most of the houses have been expanded and go to 
at least 30’ to the ridge. 
 
Mr. Karas asked what the pitch of the roof is.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 12 over 12.  
Mr. Karas asked if the roof could be reduced to 8 over 12.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 
if it were reduced the roof becomes very flat. 
 
Mr. Newman asked why the Board is getting into the height when there is no 
variance for height being sought, and the home is much nicer looking and the 
variances being sought are diminimous.  Mr. Levy felt the Board could ask 
questions regarding height so a project fits in with the neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Spindel felt there is a lot of impervious coverage on the property, even 
though it does not count.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that the Ordinance allows it.  Ms. 
Peck stated that relief is only given to non-conforming lots.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 
that if the lot were the correct size the impervious coverage would be less than 
what is allowed.  Mr. Newman asked if the driveway could be gravel.  Ms. Peck 
stated gravel driveways could not be used, as per the Ordinance. 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 4 
 
 
 

Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’.  The following members 
of the public came forward: 
 
Mr. Harvey Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace:  Mr. Rubenstein asked where the 
height was measured.  Mr. Rodriguez stated the height was measured from the 
base of the house.  Mr. Rubenstein referred to the definition of Building Height 
from the Ordinance where the measurement should be taken from the center of 
the street.  Mr. Rubenstein felt this house is a McMansion and should be reduced.  
Mr. Rubenstein felt the impervious coverage would cause a problem with water 
and this home does not fit in with the neighborhood and the other homes are much 
lower in height.  Mr. Rubenstein felt the lot is not causing an undue hardship and 
the Board should deny this application or the applicant should revise their plans.  
From Plaza Road to Sunnyside from Berdan to Morlot there are no other homes 
with a driveway to the back.   
 
Arlene Rubenstein, 28 Rutgers Terrace:  Mrs. Rubenstein stated there is no house 
within the neighborhood with a detached garage and the height of the house 
would be seen from Sandford.  Mrs. Rubenstein asked how many trees would be 
removed.  Mr. Rodriguez responded 1 tree.  Mrs. Rubenstein stated that the 
homes in the neighborhood are far lower than this home that is proposed.  Also 
there are homes on the block that flood and this would adversely effect this 
neighborhood.  Mr. Charipper asked if Mrs. Rubenstein had any pictures or if 
Mrs. Rubenstein has any experts to back up her testimony.  Mrs. Rubenstein 
responded no. 
 
Mr. Nolte, 28-11 Rutgers Terrace:  Mr. Nolte felt the application should be 
approved.  Mr. Newman asked where is his home in relation to the proposed 
application.  Mr. Nolte stated directly next door. 
 
James McGovern, 11 Sherman Place:  Mr. McGovern owns the home directly 
across the street and felt this home would affect the neighborhood. 
 
Felice Koplik, 6 Reading Terrace:  Ms. Koplik stated if the drawings show if the 
mean of the roof was measured incorrectly and should be measured from the 
center of the street and felt the Board should ask for a grading plan.  
 
Mr. Newman asked what the Zoning Officer’s ruling on the height is.  Ms. Peck 
stated it may not affect the height.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that Rutgers Terrace is 
flat in front and should not affect the measurement.  Ms. Peck stated that during 
construction, if the building inspector questions the height, then construction is 
stopped and a surveyor would determine the height from the center of the street 
and if something causes the height to not conform, then the architect would be 
called in to remedy the situation.  Ms. Koplik felt the height measurement is not 
accurate.  Mr. Newman again stated that a height variance is not being sought. 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 5 
 
 
 

Mrs. Rubenstein felt that this house is higher than any other house on the block 
and this house does not fit in with the character of the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Newman felt this application demonstrated that the lot is undersized and the 
variances being sought are diminimous and the variance for impervious coverage 
is 36.9% and building coverage is 29.3% and are minor in comparison to other 
applications and the Board should deal with the facts presented. 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Salerno 
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas – NO.  Mr. Karas felt a better proposal could have been 
presented and felt there was no hardship and it would not fit in with the 
neighborhood. 
 
 Mr. Newman – YES. 
 Ms. Spindel – NO.  Ms. Spindel agreed with Mr. Karas. 
 Mr. Salerno, Mr. Blecher, Mr. Diner – YES. 

Mr. Levy – NO.  Mr. Levy felt the home could have been designed within 
the setback limits.  Mr. Levy felt the home was too large and the ridge 
could have been lowered. 

 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 

 
Residential New Business: 
 

1. Application #2007-054, Lisa & Matthew DiPaulo 
36-01 Ferry Heights, Block 2606, Lot 25, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 6,050 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage is 55’ 
where 75’ is required.  Proposed addition would have existing side yard setback 
of 5.7’ and 6.14’ where 8’ is required.  The proposed new foyer and platform 
would reduce the existing front yard setback from 25’ to 15’ where 30’ is required 
as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Lisa and Matthew DiPaulo came forward and were both sworn in.  Fees totaling 
$88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service.  Jacob Solimon [Architect - 
GKA Architects] came forward.   
 
Mr. Solimon stated that the applicants would like to put on a 18’ x 20’ addition 
and new second floor add-a-level with 3 bedroom and 2 baths.  A concrete pad 
would be removed from the rear yard.  Variances needed are for lot frontage, side 
yard setbacks that are existing.  The proposed add-a-level would be in line with 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 6 
 
 
 

the first floor.  The enclosed entry foyer would be shallower to increase the 
landing which would match the existing 15’ front yard setback.  There is a 
hardship due to the narrowness of the property.  There are no variances for lot 
coverage and building coverage.  The addition will provide for adequate air and 
light.  The application could be approved without any detriment.  This addition 
will enhance the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Levy asked the height to the ridge.  Mr. Solimon stated 22.6’ to the mean and 
28’ or 30’ to the ridge. 
 
Mr. Newman stated that the front yard is actually being decreased.  Mr. Solimon 
stated that because of the porch being over 50 s.f. it will count in the front yard 
setback.  The existing porch will be removed and the new one will be 1’ less in 
depth to increase the size of the steps. 
 
Mr. Levy asked if the pictures presented are within the neighborhood.  Mrs. 
DiPaulo stated they are all within 200’ and depict similar front porches or entry 
foyers. 
 
Mr. Newman asked the height.  Mr. Solimon stated that the height to the ridge 
will be below 30’. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public.  
No one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the pubic. 
 
Mr. Salerno made a motion to approve this application.  Mr. Charipper seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:   Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

2. Application #2007-056, Donna Furnish 
4 Reading Terrace, Block 3607, Lot 2, Zone R-1-2 
Existing patio would increase the impervious coverage from 30.96% to 38.21% 
where 35% is permitted.  Would have a side yard setback of 0’ where 4’ is 
required as per Section 125-34 and 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building 
requirements. 
 
Fees totaling $88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Ms. Furnish came forward and was sworn in and stated that the patio was put in 3 
years ago and was not aware that a permit was needed.  Mr. Levy asked if there 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 7 
 
 
 

was an existing patio.  Ms. Furnish stated that there were red bricks, but they did 
not show on the survey and it was old and the patio replaced the bricks. 
 
Ms. Spindel stated the impervious coverage has been increased to 38.21% and the 
lot is small.  Ms. Furnish responded yes. 
 
Mr. Levy stated that if the Board denied this, the patio would have to be removed.  
Ms. Furnish agreed.   Mr. Levy stated that with a Radburn house there are usually 
hardships due to a small lot. 
 
Mr. Newman asked if a correspondence could be sent to Radburn that building 
permits must be obtained by the Building Department.  Ms. Peck stated that the 
Radburn Association does inform the public of needing building permits. 
 
Mr. Blecher asked if the concrete that is there now is bigger than what used to be 
there.  Ms. Furnish stated it does come out a little bit further to be in line with the 
door and walkway. 
 
Ms. Spindel asked if the impervious coverage could be reduced by removing 
some of the patio.  Mr. Newman felt it is not fair to ask that of the homeowner 
and the lot is a tiny lot and the impervious coverage is only going over by 3%. 
 
Ms. Peck stated that the patio is only 11’ x 18’.  Mr. Charipper and Mr. Levy 
agreed with Mr. Newman.  
 
Mr. Levy asked if the surrounding area has similar patios.  Ms. Furnish referred to 
picture #2 which depicts her neighbor’s patio being very similar. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting within 200’ and the general public.  No one came 
forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Meer seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas – ABSTAIN. 
   Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, Mr. Meer, 

  Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 

 
3. Application #2007-057, David Moreschi 

23-15 Fairmount Place, Block 3520, Lot 6, Zone R-1-3 
Proposed 6’ fence in the front yard setback where only 3’ is permitted as per 
Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 8 
 
 
 

Mr. Moreschi came forward and was sworn in and fees totaling $88.00 have been 
paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Moreschi stated he would like to put a 6’ fence in the rear yard but it is zoned 
as a front yard.  The neighbor across the street also has a fence because of a 
similar situation.   
 
Mr. Levy asked if the shed will remain.  Mr. Moreschi responded yes and the 
fence would go behind it.  Mr. Levy felt the lot is a hardship because the front of 
the house faces Fairmount Place and the rear of the house is on Carol Place.  Mr. 
Levy asked how high the shrubs are next door.  Mr. Moreschi stated at least 6’ 
high. 
 
Mr. Karas asked what will the fence be constructed of.  Mr. Moreschi was not 
sure.  Mr. Karas asked if the fence could be 5’ with 1’ on top being lattice if 
plastic is used.  Mr. Moreschi responded yes. 
 
Mr. Newman asked what the distance would be from the sidewalk.  Mr. Moreschi 
responded it would be approximately 2’.  Mr. Newman asked if the shed is on a 
slab.  Mr. Moreschi responded it is on a wood.  Mr. Moreschi stated the fence 
would be in line with his neighbor and if the shed had to be moved Mr. Moreschi 
would move it.  Mr. Newman felt the fence should be pulled back to allow for 
enough room to provide for some landscaping.  Mr. Levy stated the fence should 
be moved back 3’ from the property line.  Mr. Moreschi felt the fence should be 
in line with the neighbor’s fence.  It was determined that the fence should allow 
for plantings to be placed in the front of the fence. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public and 
no one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to approve this application with the condition that 
landscaping be done in front of the fence.  Ms. Spindel seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 
A 5 minute recess was taken.  The meeting resumed at 9:00 p.m.  Roll call was 
taken and all were present. 
 
 
 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 9 
 
 
 

4. Application #2007-059, Lawrence and Grace Fondacaro 
25-07 Waverly Avenue, Block 3417, Lot 17, Zone R-1-3 
Proposed addition and covered ramp would have a side yard setback of 7.2’ where 
8’ is required.  Proposed covered front porch would have a front yard setback of 
23.8’ where 25’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and 
building requirements. 
 
Lawrence and Grace Fondacaro came forward and were both sworn in.  Fees 
totaling $88.00 have been paid and there is proof service.  Mr. Fondacaro stated 
that they would like to do an addition on the back of the house and a covered 
handicapped ramp on the side of the house to the back of the house.  There would 
be a front yard setback for a porch also, and a second level is being added to the 
house. 
 
Mr. Levy noted that the lot is a pie shaped lot and is a hardship.   
 
Ms. Spindel asked why the patio is shaped the way it is proposed.  Mr. Fondacaro 
stated that is due to his son being in a wheelchair. 
 
Mr. Charipper felt the variances being sought are minor and reasonable.  Mr. 
Newman agreed with Mr. Charipper and if the lot were not pie shaped there 
would probably be no need for variances. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public.  
No one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Meer made a motion to approve this application and Ms. Spindel seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

5. Application #2007-058, Andrew and Veena Chien 
11-01 4th Street, Block 5510, Lot 67, Zone R-1-3 
Existing lot is 5,500 s.f. where 6,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 50’ 
where 65’ is required.  The proposed 2nd story addition and new open covered 
porch would increase the building coverage from 26.2% to 28.6% where 25% is 
required.  The removal of existing concrete and walkways would reduce the 
impervious coverage from 52.2% to 47.2% where 35% is permitted.  Would have 
existing side yard setback of 5.2’ where 8’ is required.  Would reduce the existing 
front yard setback from 24’ to 19’ where 25’ is required as per Section 125-12 
Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 10 
 
 
 

Andrew and Veen Chien both came forward and were both sworn in.  Jacob 
Solimon [architect] GKA Architects came forward as well.  Fees totaling $88.00 
have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Solimon stated the applicants would like to add a level for 3 bedrooms, 2 
baths and an office.  An open front porch is also proposed.  The side yard setbacks 
are existing.  The front yard setback would be 19’ where 25’ is required.  The 
open porch is causing the need for the variance.  Impervious coverage would be 
reduced to 47.2% by the removal of concrete and the building coverage variance 
of 28.6% is needed.  The hardship is the narrowness of the lot of only being 50’ 
wide.  Mr. Solimon felt the proposed home would benefit the neighborhood and is 
an enhancement and felt the application should be approved and there is no 
detriment to the neighborhood and enhances the character of the neighborhood.  
There would be an 18” cantilever to the front of the home. 
 
Mr. Levy asked if the existing front porch has concrete and asphalt.  Mr. Solimon 
stated yes.  The existing porch is 8’x5’.  The proposed porch would be a total of 
126’. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public.  
No one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Meer made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Karas seconded the 
motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper,  

  Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
 APPLICATION APPROVED. 

 
6. Application #2007-060, Ajay and Shama Gei 

2-19 Cyril Avenue, Block 4324, Lot 28, Zone R-1-3 
Existing lot is 5,800 s.f. where 6,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 50’ 
where 65’ is required.  The proposed 2nd story dormer would maintain an existing 
side yard setback of 4.9’ where 8’ is required.  Would maintain an existing front 
yard setback of 23.9’ where 25’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of 
area, yard and building requirements. 
 
Ajay and Shama Gei came forward and were both sworn in.  Fees totaling $88.00 
have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Gei stated that they would like to add a dormer to the back of the house and 
are not changing any setbacks.   
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 11 
 
 
 

Mr. Levy stated that the pictures presented are within the neighborhood and are 
similar.  Mr. Gei responded yes and will fit in with the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Levy stated the lot is extremely narrow. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public.  
No one from the public came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Salerno 
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

7. Application #2007-061, Phillip and Zena Serrano 
38-67 Taylor Road, Block 1608, Lot 19, Zone R-1-2 
Existing lot is 6,216 s.f. where 7,500 s.f. is required.  Existing lot frontage of 
52.50’ where 75’ is required.  Proposed addition would increase the impervious 
coverage from 21.7% to 37% where 35% is permitted.  Would have existing side 
yard setbacks of 6.0’ and 6.0’ where 10’ is required.  Would have a front yard 
setback of 23’ where 25’ is required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard 
and building requirements. 
 
Phillip and Zena Serrano both came forward and were sworn in.  Fees totaling 
$88.00 have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Serrano would like to put a second floor with a 2’ cantilever in the front and 
the rear and is going over the garage.  There is also a first floor addition with a  
patio and are increasing the width of the driveway. 
 
Mr. Karas asked why there is an increase in the driveway.  Mr. Serrano stated 
they need the additional increase for parking. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the public within 200’ and the general public.  
No one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public.   
 
Mr. Charipper made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Meer seconded 
the motion.   
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Levy – YES. 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 12 
 
 
 

APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

8. Application #2007-062, John Moran 
10-11 5th Street, Block 5508, Lot 57, Zone R-1-3 
Proposed addition would have an existing side yard setback of 9.1’ where 10’ is 
required.  Would have an existing front yard setback of 22.6’ where 25’ is 
required as per Section 125-12 Schedule of area, yard and building requirements. 
 
John and Jola Moran came forward and were both sworn in.  Fees totaling $88.00 
have been paid and there is proof of service. 
 
Mr. Moran stated that he would like to put a dormer in the front.  All variances 
are existing non-conformities and no new variances are being created. 
 
Mr. Levy noted that this application would probably not be before the Board if 
not for the Ordinance change.  Mr. Levy asked if this would conform with the 
neighborhood.  Mr. Moran stated yes. 
 
Mr. Levy opened the meeting to the pubic within 200’ and the general public.  No 
one came forward.  Mr. Levy closed the meeting to the public. 
 
Mr. Newman made a motion to approve this application and Mr. Meer seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  Mr. Karas, Mr. Newman, Ms. Spindel, Mr. Salerno, Mr. Charipper, 
   Mr. Meer and Mr. Meer – YES. 
 
APPLICATION APPROVED. 
 

Items for Discussion: 
 
Mr. Karas commented on a letter submitted by Jameson P. Van Eck in relation to 
the McDonald’s application in that Mr. Van Eck referred for no need to confer 
with an objector.  Mr. Levy felt this was not appropriate discussion regarding 
McDonald’s. 
 
Mr. Karas continued with that, in general, all objectors should be noticed.   
 
Mr. Karas left the meeting at this time at 9:36 p.m. as he was recusing himself 
from the following application. 
 
 
 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 13 
 
 
 
Commercial New Business: 

 
1. Application #2007-063, PowerTech, Inc. 

0-02 Fair Lawn Avenue, Block 6601, Lot 1, Zone B-2 
The installation of additional equipment in the exterior of the parking lot.  Prior 
approval for a use variance approved May 1976 requires amendment to the site 
plan approval Section 125-57.D. 
 
Fees totaling $4,500.00 for escrow and $300.00 for an application fee has been 
paid and there is proof of service.  Andrew J. Karas [attorney for the applicant] 
came forward. 
 
Mr. Karas stated that this application is in need for a simple amendment.  The 
applicant had an internal air scrubber and has now put it outside and is considered 
a structure.  The use had prior approval but no longer is a permitted use in that 
zone.  The scrubber has OSHA and EPA approval. 
 
Mr. Levy felt that if there are any questions, the applicant himself [who was not 
present] would have to come in.  Mr. Karas agreed and would ask for an 
adjournment, if needed, to bring the owner back.  Mr. Charipper agreed with Mr. 
Levy. 
 
Mr. Karas stated the main shareholder would have the most knowledge to answer 
any questions. 
 
Mr. Salerno felt that if the Board’s professionals did not have any concerns over 
this application, why not hear the application.  Mr. Levy felt the applicant himself 
should be present. 
 
Mr. Karas stated the equipment is already there.  The owner did not realize he 
needed a permit.  Mr. Newman wanted expert testimony as to the decibel level. 
 
Mr. Karas requested an adjournment to the September 17, 2007 regular meeting 
and consented to the time for the Board to act. 
 
APPLICATION ADJOURNED TO SEPTEMBER 17, 2007. 

 
Vouchers: 
 

1. Karen Kocsis in the amount of $275.00 for the July 19, 2007 attendance fee; and 
2. Taylor Design Group in the amounts of $1,260.00 for Omnipoint; $472.50 for 

Sprint and $157.50 for Fire Co. #1. 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 14 
 
 
 

Ms. Spindel made a motion to approve these vouchers and Mr. Charipper seconded 
the motion. 
 
VOTE:  All Present – AYE. 

 
Resolutions:  
 

1. Application #2007-044, Louis Tsai and Anemarie Perez-Tsai, 13-43 Jerome 
Place, Block 2609, Lot 6, Zone R-1-2 – Addition. 

2. Application #2007-046, William Wilters, 10-18 2nd Street, Block 5517, Lot 54, 
Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 

3. Application #2007-047, Franklin and Ada Tang, 13-09 Plaza Road, Block 3611, 
Lot 5, Zone R-1-2 – Addition. 

4. Application #2007-048, Mikhail and Riva Fishbeyn, 15-07 Eberlin Drive, Block 
4703, Lot 31, Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 

5. Application #2007-049, Eric and Carol Hansen, 9-13 Burbank Street, Block 4518, 
Lot 2, Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 

6. Application #2007-051, Nagy and Samia Soliman, 24-15 Rosalie Street, Block 
3320, Lot 21, Zone R-1-3 – Deck. 

7. Application #2007-052, Franco Saldano, 0-109 Fairlawn Parkway, Block 2205, 
Lot 8, Zone OBS-2 – Addition. 

8. Application #2005-115, Antonio and Adele Artola, 34-14 Berdan Avenue, Block 
2521, Lot 19 – circular driveway with two curb cuts. 

9. Application #2007-053, Sprint Spectrum, L.P., 21-21 Broadway a/k/a 21-18 
Rosalie Street, Block 3330, Lots 4 & 5, Zone I-2 – Addition of 3 new antennas, 6 
new antenna cables to 140’ monopole and additional equipment to existing 
equipment room – Use Variance. 

 
Mr. Meer made a motion to accept these resolutions and Mr. Salerno seconded the 
motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Eligible – AYE. 
 
10. Application #2007-025, Fair Lawn Fire Company No. 1, Inc., 12-34 George 

Street, Block 5611, Lots 19-24, Zone R-1-3 – Addition. 
 

Ms. Spindel made a motion to approve this resolution and Mr. Salerno seconded the 
motion. 
 
VOTE:  All Eligible – AYE. 

 
 
 



Fair Lawn Zoning Board 
July 19, 2007 – Minutes 
Page 15 
 
 
 
Discussion: 
 
Mr. Newman asked if the Borough understands that with the addition of the F.A.R., the 
exemption rule should be put back into place.  Ms. Peck stated that a memo is being 
worked on to submit to the Borough Manager. 
 
Ms. Spindel also felt that with a detached garage impervious coverage should be counted. 
 
Ms. Peck stated that the Board could give recommendations to the Borough and that at 
the end of the year a report is submitted. 
 
Minutes 
 

1. Mr. Sacchinelli made a motion to approve the minutes for the June 18, 2007 and 
July 9, 2007 meetings and Ms. Spindel seconded the motion. 

 
VOTE:  All Present - AYE 

 
Adjourn 
 
Mr. Salerno made a motion to adjourn this meeting and Mr. Newman seconded the 
motion. 
 
TIME:  10:05 P.M. 
VOTE:  All Present - AYE. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Carol LoPiccolo 
      Zoning Board Clerk 
 
 
 


	Discussion:
	Minutes
	Adjourn

